ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 27, 2009
3:27 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representati ve Bob Lynn
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 151

"An Act repealing the termnation date of the statew de boating
safety and education program providing for an effective date by
repealing the effective dates of secs. 3, 5 7, 9, 11, 14, 16,
18, 20, 23, 26, and 27, ch. 28, SLA 2000, and sec. 3, ch. 119,
SLA 2003; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 151(L&C) OUT OF COWM TTEE

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 105
"An Act relating to the state training and enploynent program
and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 16

Rel ating to federal procurenment preferences for snmall businesses
in the state that are owned and controlled by service-disabled
vet erans.

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 37

"An Act relating to the relationship between enpl oyees and | abor
organi zations; prohibiting collective bargaining contracts that
require enployees to join a |abor or enployee organization;
extending the policy and limtations set out in this Act to

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 27, 2009



public enployers and public enployees subject to the Public
Enpl oyment Rel ations Act; and providing for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 185

"An Act relating to the |abor organization position of state
agencies and others with regard to construction contracts paid
for by state noney."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 151

SHORT TI TLE: USE, REGULATI ON, AND OPERATI ON CF BOATS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) NEUVAN

02/ 25/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 25/ 09 (H) L&C, FIN

03/ 27/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 105

SHORT TITLE: STEP PROGRAM
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL

01/ 30/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 09 (H) L&C, FIN

03/ 02/ 09 (H) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
03/ 02/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 02/ 09 (H) L&C, FIN

03/ 16/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 16/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 16/ 09 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 27/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HIR 16

SHORT TITLE: DI SABLED VETERANS PROCUREMENT PREFERENCE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GATTO

02/ 09/ 09 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 09/ 09 (H MV, L&C

02/ 24/ 09 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

02/ 24/ 09 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 24/ 09 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 25/ 09 (H M.V RPT 6DP

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- March 27, 2009



02/ 25/ 09 (H DP: KAWASAKI , OLSQN, HARRI S, LYNN
BUCH, GATTO
03/ 27/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

JIMELLIS, Staff

Representative Mark Neuman

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and presented HB 151 on behal f of
the prime sponsor, Representative Mark Neuman

JAMES KING Director

Di vi sion of Parks and Qut door Recreation

Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 151.

Bl LL HUDSON
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 151.

M KE FOLKERS

Recreational Boating Safety Speciali st

Seventeenth U. S. Coast Guard District

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 151.

GENE BROOKS, Adm ral and Commander
Seventeenth U. S. Coast Guard District
Juneau, Al aska

PCsSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 151.

CHARLES CGEW N
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 151.

TI M BUNDY, Chi ef

Injury Prevention & Enmergency Medi cal Services

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 151.

RYNNI EVA MOSS, St af f

Representati ve John Coghill
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- March 27, 2009



Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the prine sponsor
Representati ve John Coghill on HB 105.

DAVI D STONE, Deputy Comm ssioner

Depart ment of Labor & Wbrkforce Devel opment (DLWD)
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 105.

DON ETHRI DGE, Lobbyi st

Al aska AFL-CI O

Al aska Wrks Partnership, Inc.

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 105.

LI NDA HULBERT, Menber

Al aska Wrkforce | nvestnent Board

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 105.

DOUG WARD, Director

Shi pyard Devel opnent

Al aska Ship and Drydock, Inc.

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 105.

SANDRA W LSQON, Staff

Representative Carl Gatto

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and presented HIJIR 16 on behal f of
the prime sponsor.

MCHUGH Pl ERRE, Director of Comrunications

Legi sl ative Liaison

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HIR 16.

BUTCH WHI TI NG Owner

Big Four Enterprises, LLC

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 16.

TI M WHEELER, Presi dent

Al aska Vet erans Business Alliance (AVBA)
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 27, 2009



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HIR 16.

Rl C DAVI DGE, President

Vi et nam Vet erans of Anerica - Al aska Chapter

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HIR 16.

RUSSELL KELL, State Service Oficer

Vi et nam Vet erans of Anerica — Al aska Chapter

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 16

KARL LERAY, Chairman

Al aska Vet erans Busi ness Alliance

Anchor age, Al aska.

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 16.

BARBARA BACHMEI ER

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 16.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:27:14 PM

VICE CHAIR MARK NEUMAN called the House Labor and Conmerce
Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:27 p.m Representatives
Buch, Chenault, Lynn, and Neuman were present at the call to
order.

3:27:44 PM

HB 151- USE, REGULATI ON, AND OPERATI ON OF BOATS

3:27:51 PM

VI CE- CHAI R NEUMAN announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 151, "An Act repealing the term nation
date of the statew de boating safety and education program
providing for an effective date by repealing the effective dates
of secs. 3, 5, 7, 9, 11, 14, 16, 18, 20, 23, 26, and 27, ch. 28,
SLA 2000, and sec. 3, ch. 119, SLA 2003; and providing for an
effective date.”

3:28: 29 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- March 27, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT nade a notion to adopt the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 151 |abel ed, 26-LS0422\E, Kane,
3/ 11/ 09. There being no objection, Version E was before the
comittee.

3:29: 52 PM

JIM ELLIS, Staff, Representative Mark Neuman, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, on behalf of the prinme sponsor, stated that Version
E would extend the sunset date of the statew de boating safety
and education program until July 1, 2018. Since 2000, the
nunber of boating deaths has been reduced by 20 percent. He
expl ained that the termnation date is 2010. He offered that if
the program is extended quickly the Departnent of Natural
Resources will be eligible for a full year of funding.

3:31: 22 PM

JAMES KING, Director, D vision of Parks and Qutdoor Recreation

Department of Natural Resources (DNR), offered sonme highlights
of the program He explained that the *“Kids Don't Float”
program is a major conmponent of the program He related that
515 | oaner boards are scattered around the state in 153
comunities. He related that the nmmjor supplier of the life
jackets is the Boating Safety program He al so nentioned that
t he educational conponent has reached over 63,000 students in
Al aska. “Alaska Water Wse” is a popular training program
within the Boating Safety program that hel ps teach appropriate
boating safety practices. Marketing is an inportant part of the
program including sharing announcements on the radio and
tel evi si on. He pointed out that the Cold Water Boating seal

received national recognition and is used in training prograns.
The program trains |aw enforcenent in safe boating practices and
provi des support to the U S. Coast CGuard Auxiliary Vessel Safety
Check Program He highlighted one of the nobst exciting things
about the program is that 17 Alaskan children are alive today
who were rescued from the water wearing those life jackets. He

pointed out that since the program started ten years ago, life
j acket wear rates have gone up significantly and recreational
boating fatalities have been reduced by 20 percent. He

concluded by expressing his appreciation for the efforts in
consi dering HB 151.

3:34:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN commented that it is a wonderful program
He asked how many personal floatation devices are |ost.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- March 27, 2009



3:34:40 PM

MR. KING stated that some |ife jackets wear out and others are
stolen or |ost. However, a relatively small nunber of Ilife
j ackets are | ost. He opined that people are pretty responsible
with the |life jackets and nost are put back. Additionally, sone
are donat ed. He al so nentioned that when the life jackets wear
out that new ones are purchased. The goal is to protect the
kids and t he program has been very successful.

3:35:33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated it is a wonderful program He asked
who pays for the life jackets.

MR, KING explained that the |ife jackets are paid for from
f ederal funding.

3:36: 00 PM

Bl LL HUDSON stated that this bill is necessary. He said he has
followed the program since he first introduced it during his
time as a nenber of the Alaska State Legislature. He noted that
he spent 20 sone years in the U S, Coast Guard. He stated that
much of his activity was spent saving lives of people, who in
many cases were unprepared to protect thenselves in the water

envi ronnent . He opined that the program has directly and
indirectly saved Iives. He conplinmented the sponsor for
introducing the bill and asked nenbers to extend the program

anot her ei ght years.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN expl ained that he was going to elimnate
the sunset date, but that sone |egislators expressed concern so
t he sunset clause was added back in the bill.

MR. HUDSON related that he understood the reason for the sunset

provi sion, although he preferred the bill did not have one.
3:38:27 PM
M KE FOLKERS, Recr eat i onal Boat i ng Saf ety Speci al i st ,

Seventeenth U S. Coast CGuard District, stated that the U S.
Coast Guard, through the federal Secretary of Honeland Security,
is directed to carry out a national recreational boating safety
program  The goal of the programis to encourage the states to
assunme the major role in carrying out boating safety education

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 27, 2009



assi st ance, and enf or cement activities within their
jurisdictions and to foster greater developnent, wuse, and
enjoynent of all waters of the U S Under this program the
U.S. Coast Guard allocates and distributes funds to eligible
states to assist themin carrying out and financing recreational
boating safety prograns. Federal financial assistance is
provide through the Boating Safety Account of the Aquatic
Resources Trust Fund, also known as the Sport Fish Restoration
and Boating Trust Fund. Part of that eligibility to receive
this fundi ng happened when Al aska established its boating safety
program by passing House Bill 108 in 2000, nearly 10 years ago.
Al askans are safer and better educated. Recreational boating
fatality rates are down. He provided statistics, including that
23.8 lives were lost per year from 1995 to 1999. The nost
recent 5 year average reduces the fatalities to 15.8 lives each
year. He stated that in cal endar year 2008, 12 Al askans were
lost in recreational boating accidents, which is the | owest
nunber since the program began. He stated that the U S. Coast
Guard will continue to maintain a strong working relationship
with the state, which 1is outlined in a nenorandum of
understanding between the State of Alaska and the U S. Coast
Guar d.

3:40:48 PM

CENE BROOKS, Adniral and Commander, Seventeenth U. S. Coast Cuard
District, stated that he is commander of the district
responsible for all U 'S Coast Guard operations in Al aska. He
stated that the deadliest catch in Alaska is not fish on
commercial fishing vessels, but people on recreational pleasure

boat s. He indicated that nore lives are lost on recreational
boats than on comrercial fishing vessels every year. He said,
“Your program the state Boating Safety Program has done a
tremendous job in reducing the loss of life on recreational
pl easure boats, alnost exclusively, but substantially on state
wat ers.” He recalled testinony on the loss of fatalities, and
the “Kids Don’t Float” program statew de. He related that when
he heard that life jackets were placed in lockers and |eft

unprotected that he did not expect the program to |ast |onger
than a week. However, he renmarked that people don't steal them

and they actually refill them He highlighted that the *“no-
vi ol ati on boardi ngs” have increased from 35 percent in 2001 to
73 percent. He explained that neans that 73 percent of the

boats that receive courtesy inspections for boating safety are
in full conpliance wth the boating safety requirenents, which
means that three out of four boats have the required safety

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- March 27, 2009



equi pnent on board. He related that this is a great partnership
for the U S. Coast Guard. He encouraged support for the bill.

3:42:43 PM
CHARLES GEWN stated that he has lived along the Yukon River

since the md 1990s. He observed that villagers often |oaded up
boats to the extent that only two or three inches of freeboard

remai ned. Additionally, often no life jackets were in the
boats. In 2000, when this programwent into effect life jackets
di sappeared off the boards. However, in 2001 he related that he
observed children wearing life vests. He offered his belief
that the use of life vests has continued. He said, “I'd like to
see the program continue.” He conplained that the bill contains

a sunset clause, but he also understands the desire to review
prograns periodically. He stated that he prefers the bill did
not have a sunset provision.

3:44: 22 PM

TIM BUNDY, Chi ef, Infjury Prevention & Emergency Medica
Services, Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS),
stated that HB 151 nmekes boating |laws consistent with federa
| aws, assigns boating regulation functions to the appropriate
state agencies, qualifies Alaska to receive federal funds, and

creates a Safe Boating Education Program in Al aska. He
explained that his section houses the “Kids Don't Float”
program He provided sone statistics. Since 1991, there have

been 271 comercial and 382 nonconmercial boating fatalities.
According to the Alaska Bureau of Vital Statistics drowning was
the sixth |eading cause of death between 2002 and 2006. Based
on a prior US. Coast Guard study on nonconmercial boating
fatalities in Al aska between 1991 and 2000, drowni ng data showed
that 9 of 10 fatalities occurred in boats under 26 feet. He
noted that victins were adult males and 5 of the 6 boats
capsi zed or involved victins who fell overboard, with 3 out of 4

i nvol ving power boats. Deaths were evenly split between fresh
and salt water, and in 25 percent of the cases alcohol was
confirmed as a contributing factor. However, since the Safe

Boati ng Act was enacted, the program has reduced deaths by nore
than 20 percent. Additionally, the “Kids Don’t Float” program
which is a coordinated partnership between state, federal, and
| ocal entities, has docunented 17 |lives saved through the | oaner
live jackets. The “Kids Don't Float” program has been adopted
and pronoted by organizations such as Safe Kids International
and Safe Kids of Anerica. This program was a recipient of an
outstanding achievenment award by the National Fresh Water

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- March 27, 2009



Fisheries Hall of Fane in 2006. Prior to 2000, the state did
not have a Safe Boating Act and federal funds collected from
Al askans under the Federal Sport Fish Restoration and Boating
Trust Funds were given to other states. Since 2000, the state
has received approximately $1.1 mllion per year in federal
revenue and approxi mately $450,000 from Boat Registration Fees
that woul d have gone to other states had Al aska not enacted this
I aw. The funding that is received from the progranms funds
nunmerous safety progranms including funds spent on life vests.
He nentioned that approximately $60, 000 per year is spent on the
“Kids Don't Float” program He highlighted that if the bill
does not pass to extend the Boating Safety and Education
Program that the state would | ose the federal funding.

3:47:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMVAN, after first determning no one else
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony on HB 151.

3:48: 01 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT noved to report the commttee substitute
(CS) for HB 151, |abeled 26-LS0422\E, Kane, 3/11/09, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal note.

There being no objection, CSHB 151(L&C) was reported from the
House Labor and Commrerce Standing Commttee.

3:48:41 PM
The commttee took an at-ease from3:48 p.m to 3:50 p. m
3:50:10 PM

HB 105- STEP PROGRAM

3:50: 19 PM

RYNNI EVA MOSS, Staff, Representative John Coghill, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, explained on behalf of the prinme sponsor, that this
bill was introduced last l|egislature as House Bill 226. She
related that HB 105 passed wth a two-year sunset, and

instructions for the Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent
(DLWD) to forma work group fromall sectors of the workforce to
recommend how to inprove the program The DLWD comnm ssi oner
appointed a task force that met several tines. The sponsor

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- March 27, 2009



introduced the bill this year to facilitate a statew de policy
for a coordinated and effective enploynent training and
education system She stated that a lot of effort has been put
forth on this bill. She nentioned a proposed conmittee
substitute has been prepared.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN made a notion to adopt the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 105, |abeled 26-LS0475\C,
Wayne, 3/20/009. There being no objection, Version C was before
the conm tt ee.

3:53:22 PM
M5. MOSS explained that the bill provides additional authority

for the Al aska Wrkforce Investnment Board (AWB) with respect to
the Statew de Training and Enpl oynment Program (STEP) operations.

The bill expands their duties to include review and approval of
regul ations to be adopted by the DLMD. The AWB woul d annual ly
review the priorities set by the departnent. She opi ned that
the bill streamines the paperwork requirenents for the STEP
pr ogram She recalled one gentleman stated that the grant
process is cruel to businesses. She interpreted that to nean

t he bureaucracy was sinply nore than a business should have to
endure to obtain funding for his enpl oyees.

3:54: 38 PM

M5. MOSS related that HB 105 would nake the STEP a pernmanent
program and would make the AWB a partner with the DLW to
ensure the training is in areas that Al aska needs additional
wor kf orce j obs. She opined that Alaska is anxiously awaiting a
gas line, but Al aska needs to be ready for that. Thus, STEP
provi des a nechani sm for that training.

3:55: 33 PM

M5. MOSS, in response to Representative Buch, explained that the
pur pose of House Bill 226 was to end the sunset provision and
make the program pernmanent. The legislature asked the DLWD to
review the program and nmake it user friendly. The DLWD' s task
force net and the AWB will have nore input in the program such
as in devel oping regulations to provide for an appeal process.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH appl auded the sponsor’s staff for work on
this issue.

3:57:15 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 27, 2009



DAVI D STONE, Deputy Conm ssi oner, Departnment of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnent (DLWD), stated that he serves on the AWB
and was co-chair of the STEP task force. He reiterated that the
STEP task force was the result of legislation that passed |ast
year. The STEP task force was charged wth devel oping
recommendations for revisions to statutes and regulations to
i nprove the STEP program He explained that Version C is a
result of recomendati ons nmade by the STEP task force. The STEP
task force was conprised of ten people representing the
enpl oyers, the enployees, the U S. Departnent of Labor, the
University of Al aska, and the AWB. The STEP task force net on
numerous occasions and recommended the follow ng: Ofer
services to an expanded pool of workers who nmay be displaced.
Clarify the AWB oversight and accountability. Support resident

hire through targeted projects and services. I ncrease input
from | ocal busi nesses and regi onal advi sory counci | s.
Streamine the grantee application and reporting process. Make

t he STEP a pernmanent program
3:58:59 PM

MR. STONE provided sonme statistics about the STEP program  The
DLWD tracked STEP participants for a full year after training.
In 2007, the STEP participants earned $62 mllion in Al aska
wages in the year following their training. This represents an
average salary increase of 18 percent. The 1,445 participants
increased their earnings by $9.3 nillion. He related that 91
percent of the participants clainmed Al aska as their residence in
the 2008 Permanent Fund Dividend applications. Additionally, 95
percent of STEP participants were enployed within 12 nonths. He

concluded by stating that STEP worKks. It consistently is the
best training program for wunenployed or underenployed Al askan
wor ker s. Furthernore, by reducing the length of tine that

wor kers are unenployed, this program is designed to reduce the
anount of unenpl oynment insurance benefits that are paid.

4:00: 00 PM

REPRESENTATIVE BUCH inquired as to whether a list of board
menbers and their affiliations is avail abl e.

MR. STONE stated that the Wrkforce | nvestnment Board consists of

25 people, including the conmm ssioners of the Departnment of
Education and Early Devel opnent, Departnent of Labor & Workforce
Devel opnent, Departnent of Comrerce, Community, & Economc

Devel opnent. Additionally, nmenbers included a broad spectrum of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 27, 2009



people including Jim Lynch, Fairbanks Hospital, Chair; Linda
Hul bert, Fairbanks New York Life Insurance; Doug Ward, Ketchikan
Shi pyard, operating engineers, and | abor groups.

4:01: 20 PM

MR. STONE, in response to Representative Buch, stated that the
process is streamined in this way. Three people fromthe AWB

and one public nmenber will review all of the conpetitive grant
applications and nake decisions on who wll be awarded the
grants. If any discretionary funds remain, two nenbers would

examine and neet with the DLWD conmi ssioner to mmke deci sions.
He highlighted that the whole idea is to make it fast and
ni nbl e.

4:02: 29 PM

DON ETHRI DGE, Lobbyi st Al aska AFL-Cl O Al aska Wor ks
Partnership, Inc., stated that both the AFL-CI O and Al aska Wrks
Partnership, Inc. support the program He explained that the
STEP program is particularly helpful to rural residents and
peopl e who woul d not otherw se get training.

4:04:20 PM

LI NDA HULBERT, Menmber, Alaska Wrkforce Investnent Board,
testified that she has been involved in the STEP program for
sone time and has watched the program grow and serve Al askans.
She offered that she has served on the AWB the past few years
and al so served on the STEP task force. She offered her support
for HB 105. She stated that the bill is critical, noting the
i mportance of having a trained and flexible work force. She
related that this bill provides key funding to individuals and
to groups statew de. She opined that the program can help
provi de workers with a living wage for famlies. She concl uded
by reiterating her strong support for HB 105, w thout a sunset
provision to ensure continuity of the program and for adequate
pl anni ng pur poses.

4:05: 57 PM
The commttee took an at-ease from4:06 p.m to 4:08 p.m
4:08: 02 PM

DOUG WARD, Director, Shipyard Developnment, Alaska Ship and
Drydock, Inc., explained that Al aska Ship and Drydock, Inc. is

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- March 27, 2009



an Al aska Corporation operating the Ketchikan shipyard under a
30-year agreenent with the Al aska Industrial Developnent and
Export Authority (Al DEA). He stated that he serves as a nenber
of the Alaska W rkforce Investnent Board, and chairs the
Wor kf or ce Readi ness and Enpl oynent Commttee, as well as serving
on Conm ssioner Bishop’s State Training and Enploynment Program

(STEP) Task Force. H's corporation is a current STEP grant
reci pient, accessing the STEP grant program to devel op a stable,
know edgeabl e, and skilled shipyard workforce. He stated he

supports Version C of HB 105. He asked nenbers to keep in mnd
that the workforce investnment board was tasked by Conm ssioner
Bi shop in 2007 to reassune and execute statutory authority and
fiduciary responsibilities to provide effective oversight of the

state’s workforce investnent initiatives. He related that the
comi ssi oner has provided the | eadership necessary for the board
to acconplish this task. He opined that the board transforned
itself into a “hardworking sleeves up” group of people
devel oping tools and policies to nmaxim ze the careers in Al aska.
He enphasized careers in Al aska, not just |obs. He thanked
Deputy Comm ssioner David Stone for his |eadership on the STEP
task force. He indicated that the task force recomendations

are included in HB 105. He reiterated that this task force has
been the nobst productive task force he has served on,
particularly given the diverse interests represented including
t he Uni versity of Al aska, or gani zed | abor, enpl oyers,
| egislative staff, and federal workforce professionals. Duri ng
the course of the year long deliberation the group identified
common issues and sol utions, and gave unani nous support for the
task force report, which is included in Version C

4:11: 37 PM

MR. WARD opined that the STEP program has been successful in
training Al askans for good careers. This bill would provide
statutory equality for all potential STEP grant recipients and
partici pants and provides the statutory authority necessary for
the STEP program to proceed to help create |egacy careers for
Al askans. He urged nenbers to support on HB 105.

4:12:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMVAN, after first determning no one else
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony on HB 105.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN announced the bill would be held over for
further discussion.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 27, 2009



HIR 16- DI SABLED VETERANS PROCUREMENT PREFERENCE

4:13:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVMAN announced that the final order of business
would be HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 16, Relating to federal
procurenent preferences for small businesses in the state that
are owned and controll ed by service-di sabl ed veterans.

4:13:22 PM

SANDRA W LSON, Staff, Representative Carl Gatto, on behalf of
the prinme sponsor, stated that HIR 16 recogni zes the sacrifices
of the nmen and wonen that serve in the mlitary. She stated
that they sacrifice the opportunity to start a snmall business in
order to protect our country. This resolution asks the federal
agencies to set aside three percent of federal procurenent for
servi ce-di sabl ed veteran owned busi nesses. She expl ai ned that
currently two separate pieces of legislation passed by the
Congress nmandates three percent of federal procurenent for
servi ce-di sabled veteran owned businesses. Additionally a
Presidential order mandates that federal agencies conmply wth
the federal |egislation. This resolution asks that the federal
agencies in Alaska follow the federal nmandate and investigate
reasons the federal law requiring agencies to set aside three
percent of federal procurenent for service-disabled veteran
owned businesses is not being followed by federal agencies in
Al aska.

4:14: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN inquired as to whether this allows a
di sabled veteran to partner with a |arge business and receive
advant age on construction contracts.

M5. WLSON answered that if the business is owned by a service-
di sabled veteran, who owns a nmjority share, or in Ilarge
busi ness 51 percent nust be owned by a service-disabl ed veteran.

4:15:26 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN related a scenario in which a service-
di sabl ed veteran owned a conpany. He inquired as to whether he

could partner with an XYZ Construction conpany that enploys 300
enpl oyees to obtain a preference.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- March 27, 2009



M5. WLSON responded that he would not qualify as a service-

di sabl ed veteran business under that scenario. She expl ai ned
that the federal nmandate disallows a service-disabled veteran in
a large conpany from qualifying for the preference. In further

response to Representative Neuman, M. WIlson related her
understanding that in a large conpany the mninmm service-
di sabl ed veterans would need to be 50 percent plus one enpl oyee
to qualify for a preference.

4:16:55 PM

MCHUGH PIERRE, Director of Comunications, Legislative Liaison,
Department of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA), stated that
t he DWA supports HIR 16. He stated that the DWA believes this
is the right thing to do. He expl ained the departnent believes
when the federal governnment makes rules that Alaskans need to
live by them He opined that it is especially inportant to
follow the preference since Alaska has so many veterans. He
further opined that the state should do everything it can to see
to it that our service-disabled veteran business owners achieve
success. He urged nenbers to quickly pass HIR 16.

4:18: 05 PM

MR. PIERRE, in response to Representative Buch, offered that
Al aska’s Congressional delegation is the appropriate group to
ensure that federal |aws are enforced, especially the federal
mandate for preferences for service-disabl ed veterans.

4:19: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked which entities within the federal
governnent have the responsibility for oversight. He opined the
testimony will cover this issue.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN inquired as to what percentage of disability
woul d qualify a veteran to the service-di sabl ed veteran status.

MR. Pl ERRE said he did not know.

4:19:51 PM

BUTCH WHI TING, Omner, Big Four Enterprises, LLC, stated that he
is a service-disabled veteran who owns his conpany. He stated
that he supports HIR 16 since it provides hope. He expl ai ned

that he represents a new generation of veterans. He is a
veteran of Iraq and Afghanistan having served four tours in

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- March 27, 2009



those regions for a total of 10 years, 9 nonths, and 6 days. He
opined that he and many other veterans had to postpone their
desires to run organi zations and businesses. He highlighted the
personal sacrifices that service-disabled veterans have nade.
He opined that this resolution provides hope for the service-
di sabl ed veterans. The federal governnment has recognized their
sacrifices and he hopes that this resolution wll provide a
means for the state to assist service-disabled veterans. He
offered his belief that this is not a handout but a nethod to
offer inspiration for service-disabled veterans to continue to
work towards their goals and objectives. He said, “I hope this
resolution is passed.” He opined a significant nunber of
Al askans have paid a high price and this resolution could help
notivate veterans to pursue dreans that they thought were robbed
fromthem He urged nenbers to vote for HIR 16.

4:22:28 PM
TIM WHEELER, Pr esi dent, Al aska Veterans Business Alliance

(AVBA), provided a brief history of service-disabled veteran
preferences and federal |aws. He stated that 51 percent is the

m ni mum ownership that wll qualify a business as a service-
di sabl ed veteran busi ness. He opined that the programis self-
certified. He highlighted that the service-disabled veteran

could provide the DD 214 and the U S. Departnent of Veteran's
Affairs (VA) Certificate of Disability as proof. He expl ai ned
that the disability rating can range from zero percent to 100
percent so long as the VA classifies the veteran as a service-
di sabl ed veteran. He provided information on federal |aw such
that in June 1999, Public Law 106-50, also called the Veteran
Entrepreneurship Act, which created a three percent procurenent
preference goal for service-disabled veteran businesses, which
applies to prime contracts and subcontracts. He stated that
Public Law 108-183, the Veterans Benefits Act of 2003 (15 U.S.C
657f), allows service-disabled veterans to obtain sole source
contracts for goods and services used by the U S. governnent

I n Oct ober 2004, President George W Bush signed Executive O der
13360, which mandates all f eder al agencies to increase
opportunities for service-di sabl ed veteran businesses. He said,
“And still, Alaska is left out.” He remarked that the federa

Public Law 109-461, is also known as “Veterans First.” He
offered his belief that all contracts bid out by the VA will go
to the service-disabled veterans first. He pointed out that if
a service-disabled veteran’s business is not available, the bid
woul d be opened to conpetition by everyone.

4:24:59 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 27, 2009



MR. WHEELER stated that the AVBA net wth the contracting
officer of VA last summer, and one of Representative Don Young's
staff. He related that during this neeting the contracting
officer stated that she would not set aside any contracts for
service-di sabl ed veteran or veteran owned businesses because she
feared the veterans would “jack up the price anyway we want”.
He said, “She says it's only fair to open wup for al

conpetition. This is total blatant disregard of Public Law 109-
461 and basically, a slamin all of our faces that put our Ilives

on hold for the defense and freedons of this country.” He
reiterated that the service-disabled veterans are not asking for
handouts, but would just like the federal law to be enforced.

He concluded by rem nding nenbers that when people drive in
Anchorage and Fairbanks they see yellow ribbons or stickers on
cars that read “Support the Troops.” He asked, “When the troops
cone hone, put the weapons down, take the uniforns off, why does
t he support stop?” He thanked the conmittee for allowing himto
testify.

4:26:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH t hanked him for his testinony. He recalled
conversations in his office. He inquired as to who has
enforcenment authority over the federal |aw

4:27:10 PM

RIC DAVIDGE, President, Vietnam Veterans of America - Al aska
Chapter, stated that he is also a nenber of the Veteran Business
Alliance. He responded to an earlier question by Representative
Buch, stating that no one in the agencies is assigned to enforce
veterans’ preferences. The only tool is a report by the
| nspector Ceneral. He advised that Alaska s Congressional
Del egati on has been working for nearly two years to urge federal
agencies in Alaska to neet the requirenents. He expl ained that
the enforcement authority is discretionary within the agencies,
even t hough t he executive or der mandat ed per f or mance
requi renents for every agency. He enphasized the |ack of
enforcenent is one reason the veterans are requesting oversight
hearings in Alaska, and to request comanders who have refused
to enforce the laws to participate in the hearings.

4:28:41 PM

MR. DAVI DGE opi ned that the governnment has not net its |egal or
noral obligations. He related that he is 75 percent disabled.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- March 27, 2009



He focused on his main point, to have the state insist on
action. He related that he specifically has asked to have
Congressional nenbers hold a joint hearing in Al aska. He
recalled during his tine as staff to Senator Ted Stevens that
simlar hearing were held with respect to Native health and
housi ng i ssues. He opined that procurenent officers could be
called to testify as to the reasons they are not conplying with
t he f eder al requi renents for servi ce-di sabl ed vet eran
pr ef er ences. He stressed the inportance of holding hearings in
the state. He concluded that this resolution is in the best
interests of the econony of Al aska. He opined that nore and
nore procurenment decisions are being made outsi de Al aska.

4:30:31 PM

RUSSELL KELL, State Service Oficer, Vietnam Veterans of America
— Alaska Chapter, stated that preferences for disabled veterans
have existed for years. However, those preferences have been
dimnished in practice, he stated. G ven the significance of
the contributions nmade by disabled veterans to all citizens, any
illusion of preference is unacceptable and dishonors the
obligation we all have. He urged nenbers to endorse and support
HIR 16.

4:31: 22 PM

MR. KELL, in response to Representative Neuman, answered that in
order to be considered a veteran, the person nust serve in
active duty a mnimm of 180 days, and nust have an honorabl e
di scharge, although there are sone exceptions. He referred to
AS 38, Section 101 for the specific definition.

4:32: 00 PM

KARL LERAY, Chairman, Alaska Veterans Business Alliance, on
behal f of the Al aska Veterans Business Alliance spoke in support
of HIR 16. He explained that it is critical to hold hearings in
Al aska to determne why the federal agencies are not conplying
wth state |aw He explained his group has contacted severa
federal agencies, including the US. Forest Service, US. Arny,
U.S. Air Force, and Bureau of Land Managenent. He characterized
the response as a “tepid response at best.” He pointed out that
the U S. Corp of Engineers is supportive. He said, “W have
contracting officers that do not feel the veteran business is of
any great inportance. It’s just that sinple.” He indicated
that the organi zation wants the |legislature to support them and
recognize that it is a disservice to the veteran who has

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- March 27, 2009



sacrificed hinself/herself to serve this country. He said,
“Then when ready to conme back and start a business and nove
forward in his dreans, his abilities, and his wants after his
service in the country, to basically just give that opportunity,
not a handout, just the opportunity. W have the drive. we
have the initiative. W'’ve shown it when we wore a uniform W
want to show it as business owners.”

4:33:53 PM

BARBARA BACHMEI ER stated that she is an 80 percent service
connected disabled veteran. She stated that she resides and
operates a research company in Juneau. She identified that she
is affiliated wth the Wnmen Serving Wnen Veterans and the
Alaska Mlitary Veterans Political Action Conmttee. She
offered to add to the testinony given for the definition of a
servi ce-di sabl ed veteran that would allow himher to qualify for
procurenent preferences. She advised that the veteran nust be
fully active in the conduct of the business. Thus, the instance
in which the grandfather was the service connected disabled
veteran, but had nothing to do wth the business would be
unaccept abl e. The service-disabled veteran nust have a key
managemnment rol e, she stat ed.

4:35:40 PM

M5. BACHVEIER stated that she joins other service-disabled
veterans, veterans’ organizations, and veterans’ advocates in
testifying today pertaining to passage of HIR 16. She offered
her belief that this is an excellent nove in the right
direction. She suggested her preference for a stronger use than
the word “goal” in the original federal |egislation, although
that word could suffice for service-disabled businesses, if
federal agencies turned the three percent goal into a tangible
reality. Then service disabled veterans will benefit from the
original intent of the legislation, which is not happening
currently. She stated that in order for federal agencies doing
busi ness to understand the federal requirenents, which | eaves no
room for clainms of unawareness, it is inportant to hold joint
oversight hearings in Al aska. Thus, a public review of the
contractor’s performance with respect to federal regulations is
inportant to have on the public record. She said, “If they have
wonderful explanations of why they did not neet that three
percent set aside goal, we'd want to examne those.” She
offered that the veterans would like to see docunentation and
t horoughly analyze why the federal procurenent preference was
di sregar ded. She reiterated that federal agencies doing

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- March 27, 2009



business in Alaska are required to conply, but they are not
doi ng so. She urged nenbers to pass this resolution. She
stated that later she would like the legislature to consider
what Florida is considering, which is to have a state set aside

for service-disabled veterans. She concluded by stating that
she has the highest regard for General Eric Shinseki. She
remarked that she served under him while on duty at the
Pent agon. She further opined that President Cbama could not
have selected a nore appropriate person to lead the U S
Department of Veterans Affairs. She referred to page 2, line 31
of HIJR 16, and nentioned that the General Janes B. Peake, M D
is listed, but he is General Shinseki’s predecessor. She asked

menbers to consi der nmaking that change.
4:38:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMVAN, after first determning no one else
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony on HIR 16.

4:39: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN announced that HIJR 16 would be held over
for further discussion.

4:39: 37 PM

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:39 p.m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- March 27, 2009



